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QUESTIONS PRESENTED

1. Whether Fommencing and continuing baseless litigation as retaliation for
that individual having opposed unlawful discrimination is conduct that is
sufficiently severe to éonétitute actionable retaliatory harassment under Title VII of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Iilinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1-101 et
geq. (
2. Whether the Supreme Court will resolve a lack of uniformity in the application
of the Corporate Disclosure Statement rules as required by Federal Rule of Appellate
Procedure 26.1 and Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 7.1; and to define the effect of
the rules on a court’s exercise of jurisdiction and a corporate litigant’s standing to
- litigate a cause of action.
3. Whether the Illinois Supreme Court erred in its denial of Mona Mustafa’s

Petition for Leave to Appeal as a Matter of Right pursuant to Illinois Supreme

Court Rule 317.
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e NSI International, Inc., Frank Landi, Farra Chan, Sanford Frank, NSI
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Jamie S. Felsen, Joseph M. Labuda;

e The Illinois Human Rights Commission, et a/,
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o Thé‘ Illinois Department of Human Rights, et al,
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OPINIONS BELOW

The Illinois Supreme Court denied the Petition for Leave to File as a Matter of
Right pursuant to Illinois Supreme Court Rule 317. (App.1a).
The Illinois Appellate Court of Illinois Second District Rule 23 Decision in 17-

0040. (App.2a).

JURISDICTION
The Illinois Supreme Court denied the Petition for Le.';ive to File as a Matter of
Right pufsxiant to Illinois Supreme Court Rule 317 on September 30, 2020. No
petition for rehearing W:as filed. The jurisdiction of this Court is invoked under 28.

U.S.C. § 1257(2)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Introduction

This case presents circumstances of first impression, where the Complainant
" met her burden to establish ‘a prima facie case of retaliation in violation of the
Illinois Human Rights Act 775 ILCS 5/1-101 and Title ViI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, ‘42 '§U.S.C. 2000e. Where the Illinois Human Rights Commission found
Substantial Evidence of Retaliation on August 8, 2012, and a complaint was filed.

against Respondent NSI International, Inc., the allegations within the complaint
)



have never been adjudicated by a fair and impartial tribunal, or a tribunal with
jurisdiction to hear the case. This complaint is the underlying cause of action for
litigation that spans three United States District Court Vendes, one United States
- Bankruptcy C‘ourt, two United States Circuit Courts of Appeals, and this United
States Supreme Court.
This is a case of continuing retaliation against an employee-whistleblower by a
. corporation that has willfully failed in federal courts and administrative agencies to
disclose the fact that it is 100% owned, directed, and controlled by an unverified
foreign corporate entity. According to New York Supreme Court records, through
" undocumented corporations, it appears the sole shareholder of NSI International
Inc. is foreign‘ national David Chu. The use of false and misleading Federal Rule of
Appeliate Procedure 26.1 and Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 7.1 Corporate
Disclosure Statements 1n judicial proceedings are merely a tool to accomplish a
‘ foreign\corpor‘ation’s interference in judicial and administrative agency decisions,
which have caused irreparable damage to the integrity of our judiciary, and
irreparable damage to Mustafa and to the Public.
Where the purpose of F.R.AP. 26.1 and F.R.CP. 7.1 is to screen for possible
disqualification of under Canon 3C (1)(c) of the Code of Conduct for United States
Judges, and under 28 U.S.C.A. § 455(b)(4), the failure of a corporation to file the
statement or iq the alternative, to file a false or misleading statement deprives a
court of jui‘isdiction and the corporation of standing in any proceeding. Here, NSI

International Inc. and Milman Labuda Law Group, PLLC chose to ignore Rule 7.1,



- and when compelled té file it; filed false and contradictory disclosures in different
courts.

Hére,'U'.S. Supreme Court’s decision in Citizens United v FEC, 558 US. 310
ﬁndermines and conﬂic;cs with 18 U.S. Code § 201 Bribery of government officials
and Witnesses and the Foreign Agents Registration Act, 22 U.S.C. ch. 11, Subch. II
§ 611 et. seq., Where non-disclosure of “donors” in the name of free speech has
opened “Pahdora’s Box” to abuse of power, which threatens our democracy. In this
‘ case, our judiciary does not know if the attorneys allegedly “representing”
corporation NSI International, Inc. are de facto undisclosed and unregistered
foreign agents of a Chinese corporation. Careful r\eview of the dockets and
documents in these proceedings give rise to plausible claims that judges and court
staff may also be unregistered foreign agents as well. Our democracy is being
dismantled from within.

The recent federal election has exposed and magnified this conflict. Is money an
expression of free speech guaranteed under the 1st Amendment, or is it a
transactional device to gain a judicial de;cision in a “traditionally” undisclosed
~ corporation’s favor, which is an immediate threat to the National Security of our
nation?

Clearly, the current Senate pattern and practice of c\onﬁrming federal judges
~ deemed “conservative” to the exclusion of all lother issues is troubling, during the
Coronavirqs pandemic. Are the judges “conservative” or are they “loyalists” to a

foreign entity, in this case China? Is the recent flurry of baseless lawsuits contesting



the validity of our elections and the recent discovery of Russian cyberattacks the
result of lax enforcement of corporate regulation — and a catastrophic failure to
define separation of corporation and state? Many of the judges names appear in the
International Consortium of Investigative Journalists database of offshore corporations.
It nppears litigation be;'ore the U.S. Supreme Court has become the tool to raise
capital for personal use.

There is little case law specific to F.R.C.P. Rule 7.1, and no case law at all
specific to F.R.A.P. 26.1. It appears the courts treat these two Rules as optional, and
~ harmless, with no consequences for untimely filing. Even more troubling is the
court’s Willful ignorance of a failure to follow Corporate Disclosure Rule 7.1 or 26.1
at all. The assumption that the error is harmless is v%olative of due process, and
evidence of instij;utionalized bias.

.Finally,vthis 1s a case of first impression, as the litigation that gave rise to the
: re'naliation claims should never have been commenced. All the litigation that
followed and continues to follow should never have occurred.

Now, the pattern and practice of willful and reckless disregard of the basic rules
of procedune demonstrated in the cases herein are running amok; and baseless
‘ fetaliatory litigation threatens our democracy and has destroyed public confidence
in the abili'ny of our executive, legislative, and judicial institutions to function as
required by the United States Constitution.

Today, it appears that foreign corporations who may also be foreign state

governments have been dictating judicial decisions. Petitioner Mona Mustafa should



have prevaiied in this case on or about Noverﬁber 2, 2012. For the purposes of this
case, Mustafa asserts her Constitutional Rights guaranteed under the 5th and 14th
Amendment of the U.S. Constitution have been denied. Evép a cursory investigation
of the documents presented here will demonstrate Mustafa should have prevailed
on the merits; by adhesion to state and federal statutes; and by enforcement of
- procedural rules. Mustafa has brought these proceedings to the attention of
Executive, Legislative, and Judicial branches of our government, at both state and
federal\ levels. Mustafa documented and recorded many proceedings, and Court
records provide this Hon. U.S. Supreme Court irrefutable evidence that this conflict
. must be res‘olved to protect our federal institutions and the public at large, which
has lost confidence iﬁ them.

Proceedings related to this case have been ongoing for more than a decade, at
all levels of the judicial process up to and including th;a U.S. Supreme Court. The
cause of action that the Illinois Human Rights Commission gave Mustafa a right to
pursue has never beenilitigated. For the benefit of our executive, legislative, and
j’udi.cial branches of government, it is timely and imperative that it be reviewed and
decided now.

B. Procedural History

Petitioner Mona Mustafa was employed by NSI International Inc. July 2007 as
" Regional Vice President of Sales for the Midwest Territory. Mustafa accepted the
position in good faith, with a promise that the terms of employment would be reduced

to writing later. In January 2008, Mustafa was diagnosed with Breast Cancer which



( required treatment. In July 2008, she suffered a knee injury which required surgery.
During the ;cerm of her employment, Mustafa increased sales of NSI International
Inc. (“NSI”) and NSI Products (HK) Limited products exponentially, from approx.
$2.3 million to approx. 5.8 million. In July 2008, President Frank Landi inexplicably
found fault with Mustafa’s performance, which was never documented, never
substantiafed, and is materially false. Contrary evidence exists in the record of
Charge 2009 CN 2698 1before the Illinois Department of Human Rights. (“IDHR”)
NSI Int,)ernational Inc. is a licensee of the Smithsonian Institution.

C. Prior to Mustafa’s Termination and the First Lawsuit Filed By NSI
International

Prior to her termination, Mustafa i'etained attorney Tom Shannon to represent her,
and he adviéed NSI October 2008 that Mustafa believed she had been discriminated
against for her Breast Cancer. NSI threatened to file a lawsuit if Mustafa
prosecuted her claim. Mustafa was terminated on Decémber 12, 2008, without a
stated cause. Mustafa’s attorney contin}led to negotiate to attempt to come to a
meeting of the minds but failed. On February 26, 2009, at Mustafa’s direction,
Shannon provided writ’;en notice of her withdrawal from negotiations and advised
NSI in writing that there was no meeting of the minds and that Mustafa had filed

\
her charge with the IDHR. (App.10a).

Eight days later, NSI filed a two-count lawsuit in New York Supreme Court, for
. breach of an alleged oral settlement agreement and seeking a declaratory judgment
that would preempt Mustafa’s claim of discrimination. In that lawsuit, NSI stated

Mustafa was terminated for “poor work performance.” At considerable expense,



Mustafa retaiiied New York attorney Alan Serrins to represent her, and Mustafa
. i'emoved the case to the U.S. District Court, Eastern District of New York, Central
Islip, (“EDNYCI”) izvhere NSIs 105 Price Parkway, Farmingdale NY 11735
headquarters was located. This case is styled as 09-cv-01536. Review of the Docket
Report evidences NSI International, Inc. never filed a Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
Ruie 7.1 Corporete Disclosure Statement as required (“Rule 7.1”) in the 09-cv-01536
prOceedinge.

D. The Illinois Department of Human Rights and the Illinois Human Rights
Commission

Bot}i the IDHR and the Illinois Human Rights Commission (IHRC) are‘ Fair
Employment Practices Agencies who maintain work-sharing agreements with the
: Equal Employnient Opportunity Commissiori. (“EEOC”) On September 15, 2009
Mustafa filed Charge 2010CF2063 with the IDHR, alleging to be aggrieved by
practices of retaliation prohibited by Section 6-101(A) of the Illinois Human Rights
Act. A fact-finding conference was held, where President Frank Landi.lied, stating
that Mustafa hed cashed a check for $1000, alleged to be part of an alleged oral
seti:lemenf agreement. :Mustafa countered that the check Landi lied about was in
fact for $933.72 and was an expense reimbursement for money Mustafa had loaned
to NSI..NSI had taken unlawful deductions from the reimbursement, and as a
result Mustafa filed Wage Claim 09-005080 before the Illinois Department of Labor.

"In proceedings EDNYCI 09-cv-01536, on October 15, 2010, NSI President Frank
"' Landi submitted a Declaration to the court, in which he swore under penalty of

'

perjury “On February 26, 2009, I had a check for $4000 for the first installment of



the settlement agreement and andther check for $933.72 for expenses under the
settlement agreement prepared to be sent to Mustafa.” A copy of the $933.72 éheck
1s evidenceci in the Declaration. (DE58,58-3) Mustafa never saw or had possession of
any $4000 check, and Mustafa only cashed her expense check for $933.72.
(App.11a). |

On February 4, 2011, the IDHR dismissed Mustafa’s charge for Lack of Substantial
Evidence. On February 11, 2011 Mustafaj filed a timely Request for Review, alleging
that the investigator made credibility determinations in violation of a permanent
federal injunétion. Coober v. Salazar, No. 98 C 2930, 2001 WL 1351121, *6 (N.D. Ill.
Nov. 1, 2001) followed by a timely Addendum to her Request for Review, in which she
supplied evidence that NSI had moved from their Farmingdale address to 30 W.
22r_1d Street, NY, NY, without notifying the IDHR.

On July ‘1 1, 201 because of the IDHR dismissal, Mustafa entered into a settlement
agreement\ which Mustafa agreed that she would not sue, “unless directed by court
order or subpoena.” As a result, the court di‘smissed the/ EDNYCI case 09-cv-01536
with prejudice, pursuant to F.R.C.P. 41(a)(1)(A)(ii), and the case was administratively
closed. (DE71) | A

E. The Fmdmg of Substantial Evidence

On August 8, 2012, the IHRC entered an Order vacating the IDHR’s dismissal
of Mustafa’s charge and reinstating and remanding the charge to the IDHR for a
finding of Substantial Evidence and for further proceedings consistent with its order

- and the Illinois Human Rights Act,; 775 ILCS 5/1-101.1 et seq. “The Commission



believes that commencing allegedly baseless litigation against an individual as
retaliation for that individual having opposed unlawful discrimination is conduct
that is sufficiently severe to constitute actionable retaliatory harassment under the
. Act.” (App.15a). The Order specified the conflicting evidence regarding the alleged
$1000 cheék.. The fact is that the $1000 check never existed, Mustafa never cashed a
$1000 check.

On August 9, 2012, the IDHR issued a Notice of Substantial Evidence, to Jamie
S. Felsen, Esq: of Milman Labuda Le;w Group, PLLC, and listed Charge No.
2010CA2063.1 The CA designation is for Age Discrimination Claims, CF is the
designation for Retaliation claims. CA designated claims are not cross-filed with the
EEOC. CF designated claims are cross-filed with the EEOC. (App.19a).

Mustafa retained an attorney for the purpose of conciliation, but NSI’s allegéd
‘.counsel refused to participate and as a result, on September 28, 2012, a formal
" complaint of civil rights violation was filed with the IHRC. (App.21a). For brevity,
the Illinois Human Rights Commission did not conduct proceedings according to the
Administrative Procedure Act 5 § 556, or the Illinois Human Rights Act 775 ILCS

5/1-101 et seq.

1 Jamie S. Felsen is a partner in Milman Labuda Law Group, PLLC, a separate entity from
NSI International, Inc. 775 ILCS 5/7A-102(D)(4) directs the IDHR to “notify complainaﬁt and
respondent.” The IDHR did not properly notify the respondent. Further, the Notice listed the charge
number as 2010CA2063, which is not cross filed with the EEOC. 2010CF2063 is the correct

designation.
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Thereafter, NST’s aileged counsel petitioned the EDNYCI court to re-open 09-cv-
| 01536, to compel Mustafa to withdraw her Request for Review.Z2 and despite
Mustafa’s letter questioning jurisdiction of the EDNYCI, Judge Joseph F. Bianco
ordered Mustafa to write a letter to the court. Judge Bianco issued four orders in
, 109-cv-01536? from October 25-November 2, 2012, after the case was closed pursuant
to F.R.C.P. Rule 41(2)(DA)GY). |

F. NSI Files the Second Retaliatory Lawsuit

A

NSI International, Inc. commenced 12-5528 in the U.S. District Court, Eastern
District of New ’York, Brooklyn (“EDNYB”) on November 8, 2012. NSI had relocated
from the Farmingdale Address in 2009, to its current address at 30 W 22nd Street,
3rd floor, NY, NY 10010. The Civil Cover Sheet’s Disclosure Statement-Federal
Rules‘ Civil Procedure 7.1 evidences “None” in response to the requirement to
“Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10%

or more of its stocks.” (App.27a). Further, Felsen’s signature appears on the Civil
~ Cover Sheet, after “I certify the accur;acy of all information provided above.” When
NSI Counsel Jamie Felsen filed this statement, at minimum the law firm Milman
Labuda Law Group, PLLC, Counsel_ Joseph M. Labuda, President Frank Landi, NSI

Products (HK) Limited, and NSI knew that the Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 7.1

- 2 The procedural rules of the IHRC do not have a provision by which a Request for Review can
be withdrawn. The Notice of Substantial Evidence mandated Mustafa act “in a manner consistentv

with its Order and the Act.”



11

Corporaté Disclosure Statement was inaccurate and false. Next, the 12-5528 venue
was changed, from EDNYB to EDNYCL.

And the IDHR failed to follow prbcedure as well. This is evidenced in the record
below, Wilere Mustafa petitioned and was denied a mandatory certification from the
Director that proceeding would cause irreparable harm. Contrary to the specific
language contained in the Act, the temporary restraining order for the 12-5528
proceedings in NY was denied by the IDHR as “discretionary.” Irreparable harm
has occurred and continues to occur.

“Whether it is brought by the Department or by the complainant, the
petition shall contain a certification by the Director that the particular

matter presents exceptional circumstances in which irreparable injury will
. result from a civil rights violation in the absence of temporary relief.”

— 775 ILCS 5/7A=104 Judicial Proceedings

The case was transferred to an improper venue, in violation of 28 U.S.C. 1404 as
NSI had\ not resided in Farmingdale, NY since 2009-2010. It had ﬁo minimum
contacts with EDNYCI since 2009-2010.

_Although 12-5528 was properly filed in EDNYB, and at that time NSI's domicile
’. was at 30 W. 22nd St., NY, NY, on Nox;ember 20, 2012, Jamie S. Felsen filed a letter
“requesting the case: be transferred to Judge Bianco in Central Islip ...” (DE6)
Further, the alleged orders: 1) for venue transfer; aﬁd 2) reassigning the case to
Judge Bianco i1s only reflected in the Docket, there is no Docket Entry link for the
public tovview these alleged orders on lPacer, located at the Docket Entry date
12/ 13/2012. Althoﬁgh ’éhe case was tried by Judge Bianco in EDNYCI, the entry of

orders and judgments represent the cause of action was tried in EDNYB. This is a
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false statement of material fact. NSI’s affidavits before New York Supreme Court
contradic‘e statements made before the district court.

On April 11, 2007, in case NSI International Inc vs. Leslie Wagenheim, in New
York Supreme Court, Suffolk Coﬁnty, the court held in favor of NSI, and
determined that Wagenheim could not enforce a $774,000 Ohio Judgment in
Wagenheim’s favor. The court determined that NSI International, Inc. was not the
;‘alter ego” ef Natural Science Industries, LTD., where ownership of the company
had changed. (App.29a). The court relied on evidence submitted, which ineluded an
Aaffiaavit from David Chu. As described in the court’s decision, “The submissions
reflect that NSI is owned wholly by Powerview, a British Virgin Island investment
company ‘Whose owners are Hong Kong based investors who had no ownership
interest in Natural Science.” (I, p. 2 para.3)

Further, “NSI is owned 100% by Powerview Investment Limited and the sole
shareholder of Powerview is Capitol Port Finance Limited. The sole shareholder of
Capitol Port Finance Limited is David Chu.” (I, p.4 para.3)

G. The Illinois Human Rights Commission Failed to Conduct Proceedings as
. Mandated By the Illinois Human Rights Act 775 ILCS 5/1-101 Et Seq.

The Commission’s file is spoiled, as is the alleged Record on Appeal in 17-0040
before the‘Illinois Aﬁpellate Court for the Second District. For example, the Public
Hearing noticed was changed to a status hearing that was not recorded, the NY
based attorneys and law firm appearing for NSI were never granted permission to
practice law in Illinois by the Illinois Sup‘reme Court as required by 705 ILCS 205/ 1

Illinois Attorney Act, and Mustafa was never permitted to conduct discovery,
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present evidence or ‘cross examine witnesses. Musta_fa was berated by the
Administrative Law Judge (‘“ALJ”) Gertrude McCarthy at the December 19, 2012
hearing. [Mustafa discovered later that McCarthy previously had her licens;e to
pfactice law suspendeé for lying to a tribunal] Further, evidence of tampering with
the .U.S. Mail was removed, as were bVDs of recorded THRC “hearings.”

ALJ McCarthy issued her Recommended Liability Determination March 7,
2015. (App.34a). In her determination, McCarthy relied on statements from federal
‘ judge Joseph F. Bianco; “Judge Biar;co, of the United States District Court Eastern
District of \‘New York, where a case involving the parties originated, advised
Com'plainantv that the Agreement precluded her from proceeding with her case
currently before the C“ommission.”.Further, McCarthy wrote; “Rather than accept
Judge Bianco’s position, Complainant nevertheless continued pursuing this matter,
figst before_the Depgrtment, and then, before the Commission.” Judge Bianco was
an NSI witness, and he presided over the subsequent case in federal court.

On P:ebruary 25, 2014, Magistrate Judge A. Kathleen Tomlinson issued her
Report and Recommendation (‘R & R”) for Summary Judgment in favor of NSI
International. (EDNYCI 12-5528 DE53) and on March 26, 2014 Judge Joseph F.
'Biancov issued his order adopting the R & R. (id, DE60.) On September 11, 2014,
Judge Joseph F. Bianco issued his decision; Summary Judgment in favor of NSI
interﬁational Inc. and awarding NSI $80,645. Mustafa appealed to the U.S.C.A. for

the Second Circuit. (USCA2) NSI filed mutually exclusive F.R.A.P. 26.1 Corporate
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Disclosure Statements in two separate appeals from the same 12-cv-5528 EDNYCI
case.

In NSI's Brief for the firsf appeal USCA2 14-3705, it swore, “Pursuant to Rule
26.1 of tHe F.R.A.P., the undersigned counsel of record for Plaintiff-Appellee, NSI
International Inc., statés that there are no parent corporations or any publicly held
corporation which owns 10% or more of its stock.” (App.40a). The Appeal was
disposed of in Summary Order.

In ‘a second USCA2 appeal from the same 12-5528 diétrict court case, on
.November 21, 2016, NSI disclosed iﬁ a footnote to its F.R.A.P. Rule 26.1 Corporate
| Disclosure Statement: “To the extent required to be disclosed, NSI International
Inc. is a subvsidiary of Powerview Investment Limited, which is not publicly owned.”
This is consiétent with the affidavit of David Chu in New York Supreme Court, in
2006, and direct\ly contradicts the F.R.A.P. Rule 26.1 statement in the first appeal.

| On March 15, 2015 Mustafa filed the first of two Complaints of Judicial
Misconduct before USCAZ2, against Joseph F. Bianco and A. Kathleen Tomlinson.
Bofh were dismissed as in connection with a judge’s decision. |

In the meantime, Mustafa received a Notice of Right to Sue from the EEOC, and
on August 11, 2015 Mustafa timely filed 15-6997 before the U.S.D.C. Northern -
‘District of I_llinoi-s. The case was assigned to Judge John J. Tharp. On that day,
Mustafa visited the EEOC Chicago office and learned that the Complaint filed with

the THRC did not appear in the EEOC system, which would give rise to a claim that
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it had not been propérly cross-filed.‘NSI filed its F.R.C.P. Rule 7.1 statement
February 16, 2016. (App.47a).

Mustafa named ten defendants in the cause of action, and the docket reflects
Jamie S. Felsen and Milman Labuda Law Group, PLLC represent all ten
defendanfs. On February 9, 2016, Mustafa filed a Petition to take Judicial Notiée of |
the fact that the deferldants had not yet filed their F.R.C.P. Rule 7.1 Corporate
Disclosure Statement, nor had they filed their Local Rule 3.2 Notice of Affiliates.
(15-6997 DE 57) Judge Tharp ordered the petition stricken on February 10, 2016, in
a minute entry. (DE59) He also restrained the fiiing of motions unless an
"emergency. On May 23, Mustafa madé_ a statement to inform the Court of the false
F.R.A.P. 26.1 and F.R.C.P. Rule 7.1 statements in New York courts. Mustafa filed a
motion to notify the court of NSI’s failure to file an appearance pursuant to Local
Rule 83.16, ahd for judgment on the pleadings. (DE63)

Further, Mustafa properly filed a separate motion for'default for a sum certain
ag:ainst the seven defendants who had not appeared, pursuant to F.R.C.P. Rule
55(a)(b)(1) on October 31, 2016. The Clerk of the Court never entered a default
judgment] for any of the defendants, (15-6997 DE68-79) and on November 16, 2016,
Judge Tharp issued the court’s decision, denying all of Mﬁstafa’s motions for entry
of defaulf for a sum certain, and granting NSI's motion vto dismiss. Mustafa
'éppealed to fche U.S. Court of Appeals for the 7th Circuit, styled as 16-4270.

NSI and Milman Labuda Law Group filed their appearance February 20, 2017,

counsel Jamie S. Felsen representing only NSI International Inc. and Milman
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Labuda Law Group, PLLC, where there were ten defendants in the proceedings
below. (App.44a). NSI disclosed that NSI International Inc. is a subsidiary of
Powerview Investment Limited. Spoliation of the Court’s Records occurred. Mustafa
-appea‘led to the U.S. Supreme Court pro se, [17-5936] her first petition for Writ of
Certiorari Deniéd. (App.57a). Admittedly, the first petition was voluminous.

Mustéfa has reported to the Department of Justice, and the FBI. Court rec;)rds
document where Mus‘tafa disco.vered that a top-level Department of Justice
employee'was the undisclosed businéss partner of NSI counsel while serving in his
post, in a corporation named Marshall M. Miller Associates.

In defense of our Constitution, Mustafa produced her Affidavit of Mona
'Mustafa, in Support of Allegations of Foreign Corporations Interference in Judicial
Decisions. (Api).BSa). She has delivered this Affidavit to the offices of all 100 sitting
Senators and 6 Representatives, who head up certain committees of the House of |
Representati\'/'es,. Mustafa intends to testify when the new Congress is seated.

| NSI attempted to enforce all the judgments against Mustafa, by retaining
Illjnois counsel and filing in the 19th Judicial Circuit of the State of Illinois, which
caused Mustafa to declare bankruptcy. Mustafa appealed the decisions made during
her bankxzuptcy and learned deeply troubling information, which both evidences and
corroborates Mustafa’s beliefs. A copy of the caption that exists in PACER for ‘17;cv-
07143 before the U.S.D.C. Northern District of Illinois demonstrates that the Clerk,
"Court, the Department of Justice, and. the attorney Mustafa paid to represent her,

were representing her foreclosing opponent in her appeal. (App.53a).
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Mustafa has repeatedly attempted to notify law enforcement over the decade,
with a pattern and practice of what could only be described as a refusal to prosecute
61‘ enforce the laws Mustafa has alleged were violated.

For example, when USCA2 16-3550 was scheduled to be heard on June 4, 2018,
Mustafa was iﬁformed that the case had already been decided and a Summary
Decision would be issued on or about May 28, 2018. Mﬁstafa took action to notify
authorities. Mustafa notified Deputy Attorney General Rod Rosenstein, and Spécial
Counsel Robert S. Mu;eller that the decision had been pre-determined, via FedEx
Express Overnight Services, delivered June 1, 2018. (App.45a). Mustafa‘ also
directed The Mackin Group, LLC to issue a press release, to put a spotlight on the
case. (App.46a). The press release highlighted that the USCAZ2 was going to decide
jurisdictional issues raised by tHe “mutually exclusive Corporate Disclosure
Statements.

Over the course of a decade, Mustafa filed four Requests for Investigation with
the Illinois -Attprney 'Registration -and Disciplinary Commission. (ARDC) Where
Joseph M‘. Labuda, Jamie S. Felsen and Milman Labuda Law Group, PLLC never
registered with the ARDC, never paid fees, -and never acted to be compliant with
Iliinois Sl\lpreme Court Rule 707 On March 17, 2017 Jamie S. Felsen responded,
and one part of the response merits inclusion in its entirety. (App.49a).

“If the above information is insufficient for you to understand the litigious

nature of Ms. Mustafa, and her vendetta against me and Mr. Labuda and

every judge before whom she has appeared (all of whom she has accused of
conspiring with us), we respectfully request that you contact the Illinois

Human Rights Commission, the Honorable John J. Tharp at the United
States District Court, Northern District of Illinois, the Honorable Joseph
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F. Bianco, and A. Kathleen Tomlinson at the United States District Court
Eastern District of New York, all of whom are intimately familiar with Ms.
Mustafa’s conduct.”

— Letter Response March 13, 2017

In that ‘same letter, Felsen directéd the ARDC to consider the sanctions the
courts have imposed against Mustafa “when and if she ever attempts to become an
admitted attorhey in Illinois.” Mustafa filed a total one federal lawsuit, pro se.
However, Judgé John J. Tharp detérmined it necessary té restrain Mustafa’s access
" to the federal courts, for a period of three years, and referred her to the Executive
Committee of the U.S.b.C. Northern District of Illinois. The Executive Committee
‘agreed, and now require Mustafa-to file any contemplated lawsuits with the.
Committee, on January 12, 2017. [Contrast Mustafa’s one federal lawsuit to the
Trump campaign’s 50+ lawsuits filed to overturn election results, which Mustafa
alleges is use of litigation to raise furids for personal use.]

Onor aB‘oﬁt April 22, 2020 the Illinois Appellate Court took judicial notice of the
'denial of Mustafa’s request for a certificate pursuant to 775 ILCS 5/7A-104 Judicial
Proceedings.

Where Mustafa believes that filing baseless lawsuits is retaliation, she filed a
new charge of continuing retaliation with the EEOC and received a Notice of Right
to Sue. The Executive Committee denied Mustafa’s contemplated lawsuit on July
23, 2019. Mustafa filed a new chargé with the EEOC and received a second Notice
of Right to Sue. Mustafa filed a Motion to Rescind the Order on April 17, 2020. The

Executive Committee denied the Motion on July 15, 2020, and there is no date upon
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which the order expires. Nothing in the order prevents Mustafa from filing a
Petition for Writ of Certiorari with the U.S. Supreme Court.
Mustafa filed a new charge 520-2021-00852 of continued.retaliation with the

EEOC on December 18, 2020.
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REASONS FOR GRANTING THE WRIT OF CERTIORARI
I. THE UNITED STATES IS ON A PRECIPICE TOWARDS AUTOCRACY AND FASCISM

The U.S. Supreme Court is faced with a choice. The magnitude of this decision
will determine Whether the U.S. Constitution is enforced, and our entire judicial
system 1s able to deliver justice; or4 whether our judicial system is a tool for
fundraising and for unknown foreign corporations to gain access to power and
money through judicial decisions within the United States courts.

Mustafa aréues that the foundiﬁg fathers never inten.ded for corpérate directives
- to dominate the actions of our government. Where Thomas Jefferson wrote, “that
the legitimate powers of government reach actions only, & not opinions,” Letter to
Danbury Baptists, Mustafa notes that a corporation cannot act independently,-
unless a natural person acts on its behalf, and all governments are, by definition,
corporations. Our corporation the United States of America is a company or group of
people authorized to act as a single entity (legally a person) and recognized as such
in law, and the authority is the U.S. Constitution. Where a corporation acts outside
pf the rules, it cannot be recognized as legitimate. It’s actions are unconstitutional.

Mustafa pleads for enforcemen’p, for the failure, to enforce in this case

undermines not only confidence in the judiciary, but also threatens the survival of
our de‘moératic republic under the Constitution — which appears to be in process of

being dissolved.
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. II. THE ILLINOIS HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION FOUND SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE OF
RETALIATION

In analyzing indirect evidence of employment discrimination claims under the
Act, the Commission is supposed to apply the analytical framework used by federal
courts in cases brought under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.
§ 2000e, et seq.). Zaderaka v. Illinois Human Rights Comm’n, 131 Ill. 2d 172, 178
(1989). Tllinois courts look to the decisions of the United States Supreme Court and
ithe United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit in interpreting the Act.
See Zoeptel-Thuline v. Black Hawk College, 2019 IL App (3d) 180524, T 26. 9 58
The indirect method of proof for Title VII cases was set forth by the United States
Supreme Court in McDonnell Douglas Corp. v. Green, 411 U. S. 782 (1973). Under
that test, the employee must first establish, by a preponderance of the evidence, a
prima facie case of unlawful discrimination. McDonnell Douglas, 411 U.S. at 803-05;
Zaderaka, 131 Ill. 2d at 179. If a prima facie case is established, a rebuttable
presumption arises that the employer unlawfully discriminated against the petitioner, |
and the employef may rebut the presumption by articulating a legitimate, nondiscrim-
inatory reason for its employment decision. /d. If the emplo&er articulates such a
reason, theﬁ the petitioner must prove, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the
employer’s reason was untrue and a pretext for discrimination. /d. The ultimate
burden of persﬁasion remains with fhé employee. Id.

Here, the prima facie case is established, and the employer never answered the
complaint. NSI never rebutted the presumption by articulating a legitirhate,

nondiscriminatory reason for its employment decision. NSI’s articulated “oral
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settlement agréement” never existed, just like the check for $1000 can never be
produced because it too, does not exist.

Mﬁstafa has a plloperty interest in a fair and impartial disposition of the
complaint against NSI which has not occurred. In Jabbari v. Ill. Human Rights |
Comm’n, 173 T1l. App. 3d 227, 232 (1988), this court concluded that a complainant
possesses a propgrty right in the right to file a claim under the Act. However, until
a complaint is issued by the Department, the proceedings are investigatory and not
-adjudicatory. Id. Here, the complaint was filed September 29, 2012, after NSI
refused to participate in conciliation, and the filing of the complaint gave Mustafa a
broperty right ﬁo be made whole by 4enforcement of her Title VII rights.

This case presents the opportunify to protect the public and our courts from
being subject to endless baseless, retaliatory lawsuits. Mustafa belie’ves the recent
flurry of lawsuits to try to overturn the results of the 20.20 election serves a dual
purpose, to retaliate against the public for exercising their right to vote, and for
political fund-raisihg purposes. Here, the judicial process has no provision for
verification of representation of a Corporate Disclosure Statement.

ITI. THE FAILURE OF COURTS TO STRICTLY ENFORCE F.R.C.P. RULE 7.1 AND F.R.A.P.

RULE 26.1 IS VIOLATIVE OF DUE PROCESS, AND UNDERMINES THE INTEGRITY OF
THE COURTS, WHICH IS CLEAR ERROR

It is undisputed fact that NSI never filed a F.R.C.P. 7.1 statement in 09-cv-
01536. Therefore, Judge Joseph F. Bianco never made a valid decision of financial
disqualification. The Judge’s conduct of procéedings give rise to a plausible claim

that he does have a financial interest in the outcome of the case. Further, evidence

-
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in the record demonstrates that he was an active witness in the underlying cause of
action, and not’ ‘a fair and impartial jurist.

It appears from Felsen’s letter that Joseph F. Bianco, A. Kathleen Tomlinson,
John J. Tharp, the Illinois Human Rights Commission, and the Illinois Depar.tment |
of Human Rights have agreed to bear witness to Mustafa’s character if she applies
to become an attorney in the State of Illinois. This is irrefutable evidence that
Mustafa was not afforded a fair and impartial adjudication in a neutral tribunal.

Where courté have found untimely filing or a failure to file “harmless,” Mustafa
lasserts the opposite is true, and asserts she, and every federai court in the cc;untry
has been sexlzerely prejudice(i by the failure of NSI to file the required Fed R. Civ. .P
7.1 and F.R.A.P; 26.1 Corporate Disclosure Statements._ In the global context,
numerous unverifiable shell corpofations have subverted the judiciary ability to
know who is before it. |

The Corporate Disclosure Rules are required to be filed “with its first appearance,
pleading, petition, motion, response, or other request addressed to the court.” Fed R.
Civ. P. 7.1()(1). It is absurd to ask a federal judge to decide of financial disqualification
after any of the above have occurred. If a judge has issued any rulings, and then
later discovers a financial interest — it would follow that the ruling was made
‘because of the financial interest, which is a Vioiation of Canon 3C(1)(c) of the Code

of Judicial Conduct.
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IV. WHERE NO CORPORATE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT OR A FALSE OR MISLEADING
CORPORATE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT IS FILED, THE COURT IS DEPRIVED OF
SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION .

The court cannot claim to possess subject matter jurisdiction, when the court
does not know if the judge has a financial intérest in the case. The power to hear a
cause of action must c;)me after the judge knows he is a fair and impartial arbiter of
the case. And, in this case, NSI's attorneys made mutually exclusive Fed. R. App. P.
26.1 statements in appeals from the same 12-5528 EDNYCI case. Mustafa alleges |
bias in favor of cprporate Iitigants.

If Mustafa fails to timely follow the Rﬁles of Procedure, she loses her right to
litigate. Case law also states that when a judgé acts as a trespasser of the law, or
when a judge does not follow the law, he then loses subject matter jurisdiction and
fhe Judges orders are void, of no legal force or affect. 18 U.S.C. § 1623, Perjury in a
Judicial Context.

Here, the facts of the case demonstrate that NSI willfully failed to file true and
accurate corporate disclosure statements. Mustafa alleges this occurred through
shell corporations and at the direction of a Chinese national, which gives rise to a
claim that U.S. national security has been compromised.

V. THE CORPORATE LITIGANT LACKS STANDING TO LITIGATE AND CANNOT

DEMONSTRATE INJURY WHEN THE CORPORATE LITIGANT IS NOT DEFINED AS
REQUIRED BY FED. R. CIv.P. 7.1 AND F.R.A.P. 26.1 ‘

To satisfy the case-or-controversy requirement, a plaintiff must establish that
they have standing. Standing is a “threshold” issue. It is an irreducible constitutional

minimum,” without which a federal court lacks jurisdiction to rule on the merits of
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an action. Consequently, federal courts are obligated to raise the issue of standing
sua sponte. 'i‘he plaintiff bears the burden of establishing standing. To demonstrate
standing, he must show: (1) an injury in fact, (2) that.is fairly traceable to the
challenged conduct of the defenda'nt, and (3) that is likely to be redressed by a
favorable judicial decision. In assessing whet};.er a plaintiff has carried this burden,
[courts must] separate [the] standing inquiry from any assessment of the merits of
the plaintiff's claim.” “To maintain this fundamental separation bet;Neen standing -
and merits at the dismissal stage, [courts] assume for the purboses of [the] standing
inquiry that a plgintiff has stated valid legal claims. — Memo Opinion Final of Judge
Brann, Dona]d J. Trump for President, Inc. v. Kathy Bookvar, 4:20-CV-02078 U.S.
‘District Court Middle District of Pennsylvania |

Further, the Supreme Court’s recent holding in Thune vs. U.S. Bank, states
'that the Court noted that the plaintiffs could not sue as representatives of the plan
without having suffered a concrete inj'ury-in—fact themselves or having been legally
or contractually assigned the plan’s claims. Hére, NSI is 100% owned by Powerview
Investment Limited. Powerview maintains full direction and control of NSI, and
NSI has never definitely shown itself to be legally or contractually assigned to
prosecute any claim. |

Therefore,. any corporation that strictly fails to fully and timely disclose the

information required by Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 7.1 and/or F.R.A.P. 26.1 has failed to

demonstrate concrete injury, and as a result, lacks standing required to sue.
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Where NSI's counsel knew he filed mutually exclusive corporate disclosure
statements, before the several fede;‘al courts, .it is irrefutable that NSI and its
counsel have satisfied all of the elements of perjury, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1623,
Perjury in a Judicial Context. In fact, a transcript exists in 12-5528, which
evidences that Mustafa discussed the issue in open court before Magistrate Judge
A. Kathleen Tomlinson. Mustafa asserts NSI's counsel wouldn’t have committed the
perjury unless they h;d assurances that their client NSI would never have any
adverse ruling against it. They knew they would not be prosecuted for it, and é
decade later, it’s transactional business as usual.

VI. THE ILLINOIS SUPREME COURT COMMITTED CLEAR ERROR IN THE DENIAL TO HEAR
MUSTAFA’S APPEAL

Where the court below ordered Mustafa’s Offer of Proof on the Merits stricken,
‘Mustafa claims error on appeal pursuant to F.R.E. Rule 103(a)(b). All relevant
evidence contained within the Offer of Proof on the Merits is submitted in the

Appendix of this Petition.
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CONCLUSION
In support of the United States Constitution and for the interests of our Unitéd
States of Arﬁerica, the U.S. Supreme Court must grant this Petition. As Mustafa
has been prevented from becoming an attorney by NSI International Inc., Mustafa
respectfully requests this Honorable U.S. Supreme Court appoint attorney Alan
Serrins to érgue the case on behalf of the pubiic.

The petition for a writ of certiorari should be granted.

Respectfully submitted,

/S/ MONA MUSTAFA

- PETITIONER PRO SE
2208 COUNTRYSIDE LANE
LINDENHURST, IL 60046
(224) 688-2014
MONAMUSTAFA1@AOL.COM

DECEMBER 28, 2020
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